
 
 
November 3, 2015          
 
 
 
TO:  Members of the MAG Population Technical Advisory Committee 
 
FROM:  Patrick Banger, Gilbert, Chair 
 
SUBJECT: TRANSMITTAL OF MEETING NOTICE AND TENTATIVE AGENDA 
   

Tuesday, November 10, 2015 - 10:00 a.m.  
  MAG Office, Second Floor, Chaparral Room     

302 North 1st Avenue, Phoenix  
 

 
A meeting of the MAG Population Technical Advisory Committee (POPTAC) will be held at the 
time and place noted above. 
 
Members of the POPTAC may attend either in person or by telephone conference. If you are 
attending via audio conference please contact Merry Holmgren at (602) 254-6300 at least one 
day prior to the meeting. 
 
If you drive to the meeting, please park in the garage under the building and bring your ticket to 
the meeting; parking will be validated.  For those using transit, the Regional Public Transportation 
Authority will provide transit tickets for your trip.  For those using bicycles, please lock your 
bicycle in the bike rack in the garage. 
 
Pursuant to Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), MAG does not discriminate on 
the basis of disability in admissions to or participation in its public meetings.  Persons with a 
disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by 
contacting Scott Wilken at the MAG office. Requests should be made as early as possible to allow 
time to arrange the accommodation. 
 
Please be advised that under procedures approved by the MAG Regional Council on June 26, 
1996, all MAG committees need to have a quorum to conduct business.  A quorum is a simple 
majority of the membership or 14 people for the MAG POPTAC.  If you are unable to attend the 
meeting, please make arrangements for a proxy from your jurisdiction with Merry Holmgren at 
(602) 254-6300. 



TENTATIVE AGENDA 
MAG Population Technical Advisory Committee 

November 10, 2015 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

 

2. Call to the Audience 
 

An opportunity will be provided to members of 
the public to address the MAG POPTAC on items 
not scheduled on the agenda that fall under the 
jurisdiction of MAG, or on items on the agenda for 
discussion but not for action.  Members of the 
public will be requested to limit their comments to 
three minutes. A total of 15 minutes will be 
provided for this agenda item, unless the Chair of 
the POPTAC provides for an exception to this 
limit. Those wishing to comment on action agenda 
items will be given an opportunity at the time the 
item is heard. 

 

2. For information. 

3. Approval of Meeting Minutes of September 22, 
2015. 

 

3. For information, discussion, and approval 
of the minutes of September 22, 2015. 
 

4. Draft July 1, 2015 Municipality Resident Population 
Updates and Methodology 
 
MAG staff has prepared draft July 1, 2015 
Municipality Resident Population Updates for MAG 
Member Agencies. MAG staff worked with staff 
from Central Arizona Governments (CAG) to 
create sub-county updates for Pinal County 
communities. The Updates, which are used to 
prepare budgets and set expenditure limitations, 
were prepared using the 2010 Census as the base 
and updated with housing unit data supplied and 
verified by MAG member agencies. Because there 
may be changes to the State and county control 
totals by ADOA, the MAG POPTAC is requested 
to recommend approval of these updates to the 
MAG Management Committee provided the 
County control totals are within one percent of 
the final control total. The Pinal County control 
total and sub-county figures will be presented to 
the CAG Regional Council. See Attachment One.  
 

4. For information, discussion, and possible 
recommendation to the MAG 
Management Committee to approve the 
Draft July 1, 2015 Municipality Resident 
Population Updates for MAG Member 
Agencies provided that the Maricopa 
County and Pinal County control totals are 
within one percent of the final control 
total. 

5. 2015 Resident Population and Employment 5. For information, discussion and possible 



Projections for Maricopa County and Pinal County 
 

The Arizona Department of Administration 
(ADOA) has prepared a set of draft resident 
population projections for Maricopa County and 
Pinal County.  MAG has also developed draft 
employment projections which are consistent with 
the ADOA population projections utilizing an 
updated methodology. MAG staff worked with 
staff from Central Arizona Governments (CAG) to 
create figures for Pinal County. These projections 
will be used as control totals for the preparation of 
sub-regional socioeconomic projections by MAG.  
Because there may be changes to the State and 
county projections totals by ADOA, the MAG 
POPTAC is requested to recommend approval of 
the draft ADOA 2015 to 2050 population 
projections for Maricopa County and Pinal County; 
and the draft 2050 to 2050 employment 
projections for Maricopa County and Pinal County 
based on the methodology, provided the County 
control totals are within three percent of the final 
control totals.  The Pinal County control total and 
sub-county figures will be presented to the CAG 
Regional Council. Please see Attachments Two. 
 

recommendation to the MAG 
Management Committee to approve the 
Draft ADOA 2015 to 2050 population 
projections for Maricopa County and Pinal 
County; and the draft 2015 to 2050 
employment projections for Maricopa 
County and Pinal County based on the 
methodology, provided the County 
control totals are within three percent of 
the final control totals. 

6. 2015 Census Test Update 
 
Staff from the US Census Bureau will discuss 
results and lessons learned from the 2015 Census 
Test that was conducted in parts of the MAG 
region from April through July 2015.  
 

6. For information and discussion. 

7. MAG Homeless Count Update 
 
A report will be provided on the results of the 
2015 regional Point-in-Time (PIT) homeless street 
and shelter count.  
 

7. For information and discussion. 

8. AZ-SMART and Preparation of 2015 MAG 
Socioeconomic Projections 
 
MAG is in the process of developing a new set of 
socioeconomic projections for 2015 to 2050.  The 
socioeconomic projections timeline will be 
discussed.  
 

8. For information and discussion. 
 



9. Data Collection and Review 
 
Ongoing data collection efforts include land use 
information such as General Plan amendments and 
development projects.  The land use data 
collected are used in preparing socioeconomic 
projections and conducting regional analyses. An 
update will be given regarding current data 
collection efforts. A schedule for the collection of 
data for the next six months is included in 
Attachment Three. 
 

9. For information and discussion. 

10. Regional Updates 
 

MAG POPTAC members and MAG staff will have 
the opportunity to provide an update on 
development within their jurisdiction, general plan 
amendments, and other projects. 
 

10. For information and discussion. 

11. Next Meeting of MAG POPTAC 
 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, 
January 26, 2016 at 10:00 a.m.  

 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

POPULATION TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

August 25, 2015 
MAG Offices, Saguaro Room 

302 N. 1st Ave, Phoenix 
 
 

MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 

 
Patrick Banger, Gilbert, Chair 
*Josh Wright, Wickenburg, Vice Chair 
#Tracy Clark, ADOT 
Larry Kirch, Apache Junction 
Rick Williams, Avondale 
#Andrea Marquez, Buckeye 
#Stacey Bridge-Denzak, Carefree  
VACANT for Cave Creek 
Sam Andrea, Chandler 
Thomas Doyle, El Mirage 
*Ken Valverde, Fountain Hills 
VACANT, Gila Bend 
*Thomas Ritz, Glendale 
Joe Schmitz, Goodyear 
VACANT, Guadalupe 
Sonny Culbreth, Litchfield Park 
 
 
 

 #Roldofo Lopez for Kazi Haque, Maricopa 
#Rachel Applegate for Matt Holm, Maricopa County 
Wahid Alam, Mesa 
Paul Michaud, Paradise Valley 
Jason Cleghorn, Peoria 
Eric Buskirk for Chris DePerro, Phoenix 
Travis Ashbaugh, Pinal County 
Keith Newman, Queen Creek 
*Bryan Meyers, Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian  

Community 
#Adam Yaron, Scottsdale  
Lloyd Abrams, Surprise 
*Sherri Lesser, Tempe 
Cory Whittaker, Valley Metro 
Gregory Arrington, Youngtown 

 
*Not in attendance 
#Participated via audio conference 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
Scott Wilken, MAG 
Merry Holmgren, MAG 
Anubhav Bagley, MAG 
Jason Howard, MAG 
Jesse Ayers, MAG 

Peter Burnett, MAG 
Christian Gort, MAG 
Vern Wolfley, MAG 
Lee Jimenez, MCDOT 
Doug Frost, Phoenix 
Jennifer Fostino, Peoria 

1. Call to Order 
 
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by Chair Patrick Banger. Voting members Tracy Clark, 
Andrea Marquez, Stacey Bridge-Denzak, Rodolfo Lopez, Rachel Applegate, and Adam Yaron attended 
via audioconference. 
 

2. Call to the Audience 
 
There were no comments from the audience. 
 



3. Approval of the Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2015 
 
Sonny Culbreth made a motion to approve the minutes of April 28, 2015. Corey Whittaker seconded the 
motion, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. 2015 Census Activities 
 
Scott Wilken gave an update on activities of the US Census Bureau. He said that the 2015 Census Test 
was conducted from March through July. He said that staff from the Census Bureau will be at the 
October meeting to give a presentation on what they learned from the test. He also discussed upcoming 
Economic Census workshops.  
 

5. Community TIGER 
 
Jason Howard gave an overview of the Census Bureau’s new Community TIGER program. He said that 
this is an effort by the Census Bureau to improve the master address file data. He said there will be both 
a web-based tool and a desktop tool to allow local communities to review and update their addresses.  
 

6. 2015 Socioeconomic Projections and AZ-SMART Methodology Update 
 
Jesse Ayers gave an update on the 2015 Socioeconomic Projections. He said the projection process has 
started, and draft figures will be available for review with member agencies over the next six to nine 
months. He discussed the base year data, which will be for 2014. He talked about the methodology of 
synthesizing population and employment, and projecting forward. He discussed some known issues 
with the methodology and potential solutions. He talked about projecting for build-out, saying that 
build-out is not set to a specific year, but is a measure of maximum capacity of each parcel. He finished 
by discussing upcoming reviews of base and build-out with individual member agencies.  

 
Adam Yaron asked if the base data includes only developments that have begun construction, or if the 
data includes rezoning cases and other upcoming developments. Jesse Ayers said that the data includes 
all proposed developments, regardless of construction start date.  
 

7. Map Viewer Update 
 
Vern Wolfley gave an overview of the new Read On Arizona/MapLIT viewer, which displays 
information about schools with kindergarten through 3rd grade and most preschools in the state of 
Arizona. He said that it operates similarly to the existing demographic and employment viewers. He 
said that the available data includes demographic information from the Census Bureau, as well as 
grades, test results, and attendance information for the schools listed. He said that there is also 
information about health by primary care areas across the state, as well as libraries across the state. 
Anubhav Bagley said that the viewer will be launched at an event for Read On Arizona later that day. 
 

8. 2014 MAG Employer Database 
 
Peter Burnett gave a presentation on the 2014 Employer Database. He said that the 2014 MAG 
Employer Database is available for distribution. He discussed the process for building the database each 
year. He showed maps of employment density to illustrate where employment is clustered across the 
region. He showed a graph of the number of employers and jobs by size of employer. He discussed job 
clusters used to analyze economic patterns in the region. He said that most clusters saw an increase from 
the previous year, and all clusters remained consistent with what was expected. He discussed 
internationally-owned companies in the region. 
 



9. Data Collection and Review 
 
Jason Howard discussed the updated data collection and review schedule.  
 

10. POPTAC Chair and Vice Chair 
 
Patrick Banger said that his term as POPTAC Chair ends at the end of 2015, and at that time the current 
Vice Chair will become Chair. He said that applications are being accepted to become the next Vice 
Chair, for a term that will start January 1, 2016. 
 
Scott Wilken said that traditionally the Chair and Vice Chair of MAG technical committees have been 
city and town managers. He said that anyone interested should submit a letter of interest to the MAG 
Regional Council Chair by November 1, 2015. 
 

11. Regional Updates 
 
There were no regional updates. 
 

12. Next Meeting of MAG POPTAC 
 

Chair Patrick Banger said that the next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 22, 2015 at 10:00 
am. The meeting adjourned at 10:50 am. 



July 1, 2010 July 1, 2015 Change

Maricopa County 3,817,117 4,078,062 260,945
Pinal County 375,770 405,363 29,593
    In MAG MPA 238,159 260,174 22,015

MAG MPA total 4,055,276 4,338,236 282,960

Sources:  U.S. Census Bureau, 
                Arizona State Demographer's Office,
                Maricopa Association of Governments,
                Central Arizona Governments

DRAFT, last updated: November 3, 2015

Population Update
Census 2010 and July 1, 2015

Pinal County jurisdiction estimates were created in collaboration with CAG staff; Pinal County control total and sub-
county estimates will be presented to CAG Regional Council 

DRAFT

ATT One 
Item 4



Occupancy Persons per Change in

Jurisdiction Total Household Group Total Occupied Rate Occupied Residential Residential Group Housing Total Group Jurisdiction

Quarter Units Completions Demolitions Quarters Units Population Quarter

Apache Junction 35,840 35,557 283 22,564 15,574 69.02% 2.28 896 47 8 16 28 23,304 37,639 23,421 38,140 311 38,451 Apache Junction

    Maricopa County Portion 294 294 0 293 210 71.67% 1.40 0 0 0 0 0 293 300 293 303 0 303     Maricopa County Portion

    Pinal County Portion 35,546 35,263 283 22,271 15,364 68.99% 2.30 896 47 8 16 28 23,011 37,339 23,128 37,837 311 38,148     Pinal County Portion

Avondale 76,238 76,078 160 27,001 23,386 86.61% 3.25 164 18 0 0 -20 27,100 78,090 27,147 78,779 140 78,919 Avondale

Buckeye 50,876 45,782 5,094 18,207 14,424 79.22% 3.17 3,116 0 8 16 524 20,625 58,795 21,331 55,579 5,618 61,197 Buckeye

Carefree 3,363 3,316 47 2,251 1,654 73.48% 2.00 43 0 0 0 0 2,265 3,453 2,294 3,479 47 3,526 Carefree

Cave Creek 5,015 5,015 0 2,579 2,150 83.37% 2.33 132 3 1 0 0 2,694 5,354 2,709 5,431 0 5,431 Cave Creek

Chandler 236,326 235,780 546 94,472 86,992 92.08% 2.71 4,561 60 11 34 15 97,587 249,423 98,984 254,621 561 255,182 Chandler

El Mirage 31,797 31,784 13 11,326 9,416 83.14% 3.38 214 3 0 0 0 11,465 32,857 11,537 33,338 13 33,351 El Mirage

Florence 25,536 7,836 17,700 5,224 3,330 63.74% 2.35 754 2 0 0 -546 5,839 26,828 5,976 9,262 17,154 26,416 Florence

Fort McDowell 971 971 0 308 283 91.88% 3.43 0 0 0 0 0 308 991 308 1,000 0 1,000 Fort McDowell

Fountain Hills 22,489 22,307 182 13,167 10,339 78.52% 2.16 112 0 0 0 0 13,242 23,090 13,279 23,174 182 23,356 Fountain Hills

Gila Bend 1,922 1,922 0 943 664 70.41% 2.89 0 0 0 0 0 943 1,960 943 1,977 0 1,977 Gila Bend 

Gila River 11,712 11,473 239 3,238 2,982 92.09% 3.85 - - - - - - 11,857 - 11,661 239 11,900 Gila River

    Maricopa County Portion 2,994 2,984 10 835 748 89.58% 3.99 1 0 0 0 0 836 3,059 836 3,076 10 3,086     Maricopa County Portion

    Pinal County Portion* 8,718 8,489 229 2,403 2,234 92.97% 3.80 - - - - - - 8,798 - 8,585 229 8,814     Pinal County Portion*

Gilbert 208,352 208,048 304 74,870 69,335 92.61% 3.00 9,529 18 3 5 0 82,463 235,493 84,384 242,657 304 242,961 Gilbert

Glendale 226,721 223,464 3,257 90,505 79,114 87.41% 2.82 694 41 0 0 -197 91,144 232,680 91,158 231,804 3,060 234,864 Glendale

Goodyear 65,275 61,447 3,828 25,027 21,491 85.87% 2.86 3,864 3 0 0 483 28,004 74,743 28,888 73,496 4,311 77,807 Goodyear

Guadalupe 5,523 5,508 15 1,376 1,292 93.90% 4.26 85 0 0 0 0 1,461 6,084 1,461 6,123 15 6,138 Guadalupe

Litchfield Park 5,476 5,439 37 2,716 2,263 83.32% 2.40 187 5 0 0 0 2,860 5,893 2,898 5,985 37 6,022 Litchfield Park

Maricopa 43,482 43,482 0 17,240 14,359 83.29% 3.03 1,237 0 0 0 12 18,223 46,708 18,477 48,150 12 48,162 Maricopa

Mesa 439,041 435,503 3,538 201,173 165,374 82.20% 2.63 3,567 55 373 497 436 204,340 455,567 205,058 457,171 3,974 461,145 Mesa

Paradise Valley 12,820 12,789 31 5,643 4,860 86.12% 2.63 190 0 0 0 0 5,788 13,457 5,833 13,648 31 13,679 Paradise Valley

Peoria** 154,058 152,831 1,227 64,814 57,454 88.64% 2.66 3,572 4 5 14 0 67,405 163,832 68,387 166,384 1,227 167,611 Peoria**

Phoenix 1,447,128 1,425,390 21,738 590,612 515,208 87.23% 2.77 13,390 748 5 18 6,162 600,589 1,506,439 603,259 1,500,249 27,900 1,528,149 Phoenix

Queen Creek 26,361 26,345 16 8,557 7,720 90.22% 3.41 2,104 0 2 4 0 10,042 31,767 10,663 33,966 16 33,982 Queen Creek

    Maricopa County Portion 25,912 25,896 16 8,394 7,569 90.17% 3.42 2,100 0 2 4 0 9,878 31,308 10,496 33,491 16 33,507     Maricopa County Portion

    Pinal County Portion 449 449 0 163 151 92.64% 2.97 4 0 0 0 0 164 459 167 475 0 475     Pinal County Portion

Salt River 6,289 6,284 5 2,607 2,198 84.31% 2.86 63 0 0 0 0 2,658 6,557 2,670 6,639 5 6,644 Salt River

Scottsdale 217,385 216,226 1,159 124,001 101,273 81.67% 2.14 4,279 88 0 0 -22 126,139 225,698 128,192 230,165 1,137 231,302 Scottsdale

Surprise 117,517 117,243 274 52,586 43,272 82.29% 2.71 2,006 37 0 0 0 54,207 123,797 54,555 125,401 274 125,675 Surprise

Tempe 161,719 151,531 10,188 73,462 66,000 89.84% 2.30 2,202 31 0 0 1,038 75,176 169,529 75,633 160,774 11,226 172,000 Tempe

Tolleson 6,545 6,545 0 2,169 1,959 90.32% 3.34 35 1 0 0 0 2,202 6,777 2,203 6,840 0 6,840 Tolleson

Wickenburg** 6,363 6,174 189 3,617 2,909 80.43% 2.12 20 0 32 60 0 3,666 6,584 3,669 6,457 189 6,646 Wickenburg**

Youngtown 6,156 5,953 203 2,831 2,470 87.25% 2.41 65 0 0 0 0 2,896 6,415 2,896 6,267 203 6,470 Youngtown

Unincorporated
Maricopa County 272,552 271,436 1,116 141,494 117,276 82.88% 2.31 1,614 3 -440 -648 0 142,470 280,426 142,665 282,158 1,116 283,274

Unincorporated
Maricopa County

Unincorporated
Pinal County*** 178,799 178,347 452 78,056 63,224 81.00% 2.82 4,683 132 -15 -31 290 84,073 190,417 84,995 195,341 742 196,083

Unincorporated
Pinal County*

Note: Totals may not add due to rounding

DRAFT, last updated: November 3, 2015

* Residential Completions for Pinal County portion of Gila River Indian Community are included in Unincorporated Pinal County  
** Maricopa County portion only
*** Unincorporated Pinal County includes portions outside the MAG Planning Area    

Sources:  U.S. Census Bureau, Arizona State Demographer's Office, Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG), Central Arizona Governments (CAG)

Pinal County jurisdiction estimates were created in collaboration with CAG staff; Pinal County control total and sub-county estimates will be presented to CAG Regional Council

DRAFT

Municipality Population and Housing Unit Update

April 1, 2010 and July 1, 2015
Maricopa Association of Governments

Census 2010 (April 1 2010) April 1 2010 - June 30 2014

Population        Housing Units
Total 

Housing Units

Population

Household Total

July 1, 2014 Update

Annexed 
Housing Units

Annexed  
Household 
Population

July 1, 2015 Update

ATT One 
Item 4



Jurisdiction April 1, 2010 
(Census 2010) July 1, 2015 Change Overall Annual

Apache Junction 35,840 38,451 2,611 7.29% 1.35%
    Maricopa County portion 294 303 9 3.06% 0.58%
    Pinal County portion 35,546 38,148 2,602 7.32% 1.35%
Avondale 76,238 78,919 2,681 3.52% 0.66%
Buckeye 50,876 61,197 10,321 20.29% 3.58%
Carefree 3,363 3,526 163 4.85% 0.91%
Cave Creek 5,015 5,431 416 8.30% 1.53%
Chandler^ 236,326 255,182 18,856 7.98% 1.47%
El Mirage 31,797 33,351 1,554 4.89% 0.91%
Florence 25,536 26,416 880 3.45% 0.65%
Fort McDowell 971 1,000 29 2.99% 0.56%
Fountain Hills 22,489 23,356 867 3.86% 0.72%
Gila Bend 1,922 1,977 55 2.86% 0.54%
Gila River 11,712 11,900 188 1.61% 0.30%
    Maricopa County portion 2,994 3,086 92 3.07% 0.58%
    Pinal County portion 8,718 8,814 96 1.10% 0.21%
Gilbert^ 208,352 242,961 34,609 16.61% 2.97%
Glendale 226,721 234,864 8,143 3.59% 0.67%
Goodyear 65,275 77,807 12,532 19.20% 3.40%
Guadalupe 5,523 6,138 615 11.14% 2.03%
Litchfield Park 5,476 6,022 546 9.97% 1.83%
Maricopa 43,482 48,162 4,680 10.76% 1.97%
Mesa 439,041 461,145 22,104 5.03% 0.94%
Paradise Valley 12,820 13,679 859 6.70% 1.24%
Peoria* 154,058 167,611 13,553 8.80% 1.62%
Phoenix^ 1,447,128 1,528,149 81,021 5.60% 1.04%
Queen Creek 26,361 33,982 7,621 28.91% 4.96%
    Maricopa County portion 25,912 33,507 7,595 29.31% 5.02%
    Pinal County portion 449 475 26 5.79% 1.08%
Salt River 6,289 6,644 355 5.64% 1.05%
Scottsdale 217,385 231,302 13,917 6.40% 1.19%
Surprise 117,517 125,675 8,158 6.94% 1.29%
Tempe 161,719 172,000 10,281 6.36% 1.18%
Tolleson 6,545 6,840 295 4.51% 0.84%
Wickenburg* 6,363 6,646 283 4.45% 0.83%
Youngtown 6,156 6,470 314 5.10% 0.95%

Unincorporated 
Maricopa County

272,552 283,274 10,722 3.93% 0.74%

Unincorporated 
Pinal County**

178,799 196,083 17,284 9.67% 1.77%
    Portions in MAG MPA 124,428 138,159 13,731 11.04% 2.01%

DRAFT, last updated: November 3, 2015

Note: Totals may not add due to rounding

* Maricopa County portion only
** Excludes Gila River portion
^ Census 2010 counts adjusted to reflect Census Count Question Resolutions
Sources:  U.S. Census Bureau, Arizona State Demographer's Office, Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG), Central Arizona Governments (CAG)

Pinal County jurisdiction estimates were created in collaboration with CAG staff; Pinal County control total and sub-county estimates will be presented to CAG Regional Council   

See attached document for methodology

Census 2010 and July 1, 2015

Total Population Percent Change

Jurisdiction Population Update

DRAFT

ATT One 
Item 4



       
Methodology for Preparing July 1, 2015 Municipality Population Updates

1. Prepare Census Data

Using the Census 2010 as the Base, determine the April 1, 2010 household population, group
quarter population, total housing units, occupied housing units, occupancy rates and
population per occupied unit for total units for each jurisdiction. Adjust the original census
counts to reflect results of the Census Count Question Resolution (CQR) Program. 

2. Collect New Data

Obtain the residential housing unit completions and demolitions for the time period from
July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 from member agencies. 

Obtain annexed and de-annexed housing unit data from member agencies.   Determine
population change from annexations/de-annexations using persons per household and
occupancy rates from the Census 2010 blocks intersecting each annexed/de-annexed area.

Obtain July 1, 2015 group quarters population from survey of  member agencies. Subtract
the April 1, 2010 group quarter count from the July 1, 2015 to obtain the change in group
quarter population. 

Data for municipalities in Maricopa County were collected by MAG. Data for municipalities 
in Pinal County were collected by Central Arizona Governments (CAG).

3. Calculate July 1, 2015 Housing Units

Calculate the July 1, 2015 total housing stock by municipality by adding the net housing
units (completions minus demolitions) and the net housing units annexed from step 2 above
to the Census base. 

4. Calculate July 1, 2015 Resident Population

Calculate the updated  household population using the Housing Unit Method (HUM). For
Maricopa County, calculate change in the household population by multiplying the annual
change in the housing stock of non-annexed units by the respective occupancy rates and
persons per occupied unit by municipality. Then add the estimated  household population
change to the annexed population for each municipality and estimated household population
for the previous year. For Pinal County, estimate the household population by multiplying 
the total non-annexed housing stock by the respective occupancy rates and persons per
occupied unit by municipality and adding to  annexed population estimates. Occupancy rates
and persons per occupied unit by municipality were taken from Census 2010 for both
counties.  

Bench the residential population in households to the county control totals for population in
households from Arizona State Demographer’s Office (SDO) to obtain July 1, 2015
population in households.  Benching is necessary when the MAG derived total population
does not match the control total obtained from SDO. The household population difference

ATT One 
Item 4



is distributed proportional to the pre-beneched household population results for July 1, 2015.

Calculate the total resident population for July 1, 2015 by adding the July 1, 2015 group
quarter population from step 2 to the July 1, 2015 household population. 

5. Estimating Unincorporated Pinal County population within MAG MPA

Housing completion, annexation and group quarters data are provided by CAG for the entire
unincorporated area. Therefore populations are first estimated for the entire unincorporated
area and then distributed to (a)  portions within the Gila River River Indian Community and
(b) unincorporated portions within the MAG planning area. The Gila River population is
estimated by applying a historic annual growth rate. The unincorporated  population within
the MAG planning area is distributed by applying the share of housing completions observed
from April 1, 2010 to June 30, 2014, to the total unincorporated population and then
subtracting the estimated Gila River population. 

ATT One 
Item 4



ATT Two 
Item 5 

 

DRAFT Population and Employment Projections for July 1 of each year 

 

Maricopa County 

Year Total Resident Population Total Employment 

2015 4,081,000 1,923,000 
2020 4,506,000 2,165,000 
2025 4,912,000 2,324,000 
2030 5,307,000 2,490,000 
2035 5,693,000 2,670,000 
2040 6,059,000 2,863,000 
2045 6,401,000 3,061,000 
2050 6,728,000 3,267,000 

 

 

Pinal County 

Year Total Resident Population Total Employment 

2015 407,000 68,000 
2020 480,000 80,000 
2025 560,000 95,000 
2030 654,000 121,000 
2035 765,000 153,000 
2040 889,000 191,000 
2045 1,021,000 235,000 
2050 1,164,000 286,000 

 

 

Notes: 

Population projections are from the Arizona Department of Administration Draft Projections, November 
2015.  Employment projections are based on the attached methodology. 

Population and employment projections above have been rounded to the nearest thousand. 

 



ATT Two 
Item 5 

 
Draft Population Projections Control Totals for Maricopa and Pinal Counties  
           

A. Population 
• The Arizona State Demographer employs a cohort-component population projection 

model to be consistent with the results of the 2010 Census, recent American Community 
Survey (ACS) results, and recent population estimates.  The cohort-component model 
was created with input from the Council for Technical Solutions (CTS). 

• CTS consists of members from all of Arizona’s Councils of Government (COGs) and 
Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs), representatives from the major universities, 
and State level representatives from the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT), 
the Arizona Department of Health Services, and the Arizona State Demographer.   

• At CTS, members discuss the model assumptions, input data, and results from the 
cohort-component model.  These include school enrollment data, driver’s license data, 
Medicare data, migration rates, survival rates, birth rates, race/ethnic groupings, etc.  The 
model projects resident population by age, sex, and race/ethnicity for each county in 
Arizona.  These results are used to control the sub-county population projections.  

• In the 2012/13 projections from the State Demographer, it was assumed that as the 
economy recovered the state would see a temporary rise in birth rates across all 
race/ethnic groups as people became more confident along with the economy.  Although 
the economy has recovered somewhat, the Vital Statistics data obtained since then have 
not reflected that assumed rise in birth rates, so for this set of projections that assumption 
has been removed. 

• MAG develops sub-county resident population projections for Maricopa County 
municipalities to be consistent with population control totals produced for Maricopa 
County as described above.  MAG also works in collaboration with staff at Central 
Arizona Governments (CAG) to develop sub-county resident population projections in 
Pinal County.  The CAG Regional Council will also approve the control totals for their 
member agencies. 

B. Employment 
 

• The Arizona Department of Administration’s (ADOA) State Demographer’s Office does 
not produce county level long-term employment forecasts; therefore it is necessary to 
obtain employment projections from another source.  

• MAG develops county-level and industry-specific long-term employment projections for 
Maricopa County and will be developing 2015 long-range employment projections for 
Pinal County in collaboration with staff at Central Arizona Governments (CAG).  

• To develop the 2015 county-level long-range regional employment projections for the 
Maricopa County and Pinal County, and to maintain consistency, MAG staff purchased the 
updated 2015 population and employment projections from Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and 
Woods & Poole Economics, Inc. In addition, MAG subscribes to quarterly employment 
forecasts for the Phoenix metropolitan statistical area (Maricopa and Pinal) produced by 
the Economic and Business Research Center at the University of Arizona. The University 
of Arizona forecasts augment Moody’s Analytics, Inc. socio-economic projections by 
providing a benchmark to Moody’s Analytics Inc. short-term projections. The county-level 



ATT Two 
Item 5 

socio-economic projections from Woods & Poole Economics, Inc. are also used to 
inform the process and ensure quality control of the data at the County-level. 

• The employment projection figures were calculated using the following steps: 

o Derived employment growth rates for Maricopa and Pinal from the Moody’s Analytics 
Inc. employment projections and for the Phoenix metropolitan statistical area from 
the University of Arizona’s employment projections. Conducted a comparative 
analysis of the employment growth rates and employment to population ratios. The 
comparative analysis included a review of the series against the employment forecasts 
for 2015 and 2016 released by the Arizona Department of Administration’s Office of 
Employment and Population Statistics and against national economic forecasts by the 
National Association of Business Economists (NABE) and the International Monetary 
Fund.  In addition, short-term projections were assessed against historical and current 
trends to determine how well the purchased projections representation current 
economic conditions and near-term expectations. Overall, Moody’s Analytics, Inc., 
Woods and Pools Economics, Inc. and The University of Arizona’s employment 
growth rates were found to be similar for the long-end of the projections but differ in 
their short-term growth expectations (2015 to 2020). The University of Arizona’s 
projections seem more in line with the current local business environment and near 
term economic expectations and forecasts by the Arizona Department of 
Administration’s Office of Employment and Population Statistics. Woods and Pools 
Economic, Inc. applies a flat line projection and therefore does not have a business 
cycle in their short-term projections. 

o Pooled employment-weighted annual average growth rates for Moody’s Analytics, 
Inc. and Woods and Pool Economics, Inc. employment projections provide a series 
that represents current short-term economic expectations and aligns with short-term 
(2015-2020) employment projections developed by the University of Arizona and 
2015 and 2016 employment projections by the Arizona Department of 
Administration’s Office of Employment and Population Statistics.  

o Compiled and processed the Maricopa and Pinal 2014 base employment data to 
include covered employment, military, and uncovered employment.  Developed 
pooled, employment weighted, annual average growth rates from 2015 to 2050 
from both Moody’s Analytics Inc. and Woods and Pools Economics employment 
projections. Applied growth rates derived by county to the base employment data for 
Maricopa and Pinal Counties.  Developed employment-to-population ratios utilizing 
the ADOA draft population projections. Employment-to-population ratios derived 
were found to be growing for both Maricopa and Pinal Counties and, consequently, 
for the Phoenix metropolitan statistical area, as well.  

o Applied structural adjustments to commuter flows between Maricopa and Pinal 
counties to reflect a decrease in the number of workers living in Pinal County and 
working in Maricopa County and an increase in the number of workers living in 
Maricopa County and working in (commuting to) Pinal County. It is assumed and 
expected that as Pinal County’s population increases its economy will develop key 
anchor industry sectors in support of, and to meet the employment and consumption 
needs of, its residents. These industry sectors will attract workers from neighboring 
counties, including Maricopa County. Current commuter flows data provided by the 
Census Transportation Planning Products 2006-2010 data indicate that more than 48 
percent of Pinal County workers commute to Maricopa County and 0.3 percent of 



ATT Two 
Item 5 

Maricopa County’s residents work in Pinal County. These trends are expected to 
change in the long-term, resulting in a larger proportion Pinal County’s residents 
working in Pinal County. Assumptions on these reverse commuter jobs are applied 
and adjusted for in the county-level employment projections. 

o Derived county level employment by business sector by year from a combination of 
the two series (Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and Woods and Pools Economics. Inc.) The 
University of Arizona’s employment projections for the Phoenix metropolitan 
statistical area are used as a benchmark and to ensure quality control of the 
developed Maricopa and Pinal Counties’ employment projections.  



ATT Three
ITEM 9

DRAFT

MAG Due Date Member Agency Due Date Activity

Submit when the latest Plan 
or update is complete.

Submit General Plans for 60 day review.

Submit when Amendment is 
ready for review.

Submit Major General Plan Amendments for 60 day review.

Ongoing Ongoing

Submit Minor General Plan Amendments, Area Plans and 
Development Master Plans/Community Master Plans and 
Amendments.

Ongoing Ongoing

Submit Planned Area Developments/Planned Community 
Developments/Planned Residential Developments/Unit Planned 
Development/Final Plats and Reports.

Ongoing Ongoing Submit copy of C404 Form to MAG.
Ongoing Ongoing Submit Annexations to MAG as they occur.

December, 2015
Review of County and Sub-county 2015 population updates 
dependent upon State Demographer's Office schedule.

January, 2016 Submit Q4 residential completions to MAG.

December, 2015 January, 2016
MAG sends jurisdictions list of all land use documents received 
for calendar year 2015 for their review.

January, 2016 February, 2016
MAG sends jurisdictions the draft 2015 General Plan and 
Developments database for review.

April, 2016 Submit Q1 residential completions to MAG.

April, 2016 April, 2016

MAG sends jurisdictions the draft annexations between July 
1,2015 and March 31, 2016 for July 1 Arizona Department 
ofCommerce population estimates. Jurisdictions verify and 
provide number of units.

April, 2016 May, 2016
MAG sends jurisdictions the 2015 draft Employer database for 
review.

DRAFT 
MAG POPTAC Timeline

From November 2015 to May 2016


	2015-11-10 POPTAC Agenda
	TENTATIVE AGENDA MAG Population Technical Advisory Committee

	August 25, 2015 minutes
	MINUTES OF THE
	MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
	POPULATION TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
	UMEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE
	UOTHERS IN ATTENDANCE
	1. UCall to Order
	The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by Chair Patrick Banger. Voting members Tracy Clark, Andrea Marquez, Stacey Bridge-Denzak, Rodolfo Lopez, Rachel Applegate, and Adam Yaron attended via audioconference.
	2. UCall to the Audience  UThere were no comments from the audience.
	3. UApproval of the Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2015  USonny Culbreth made a motion to approve the minutes of April 28, 2015. Corey Whittaker seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously.
	4. U2015 Census Activities  UScott Wilken gave an update on activities of the US Census Bureau. He said that the 2015 Census Test was conducted from March through July. He said that staff from the Census Bureau will be at the October meeting to give a...
	5. UCommunity TIGER  UJason Howard gave an overview of the Census Bureau’s new Community TIGER program. He said that this is an effort by the Census Bureau to improve the master address file data. He said there will be both a web-based tool and a desk...
	6. U2015 Socioeconomic Projections and AZ-SMART Methodology Update  UJesse Ayers gave an update on the 2015 Socioeconomic Projections. He said the projection process has started, and draft figures will be available for review with member agencies over...
	Adam Yaron asked if the base data includes only developments that have begun construction, or if the data includes rezoning cases and other upcoming developments. Jesse Ayers said that the data includes all proposed developments, regardless of constru...
	7. UMap Viewer Update  UVern Wolfley gave an overview of the new Read On Arizona/MapLIT viewer, which displays information about schools with kindergarten through 3PrdP grade and most preschools in the state of Arizona. He said that it operates simila...
	8. 2014 MAG Employer Database
	Peter Burnett gave a presentation on the 2014 Employer Database. He said that the 2014 MAG Employer Database is available for distribution. He discussed the process for building the database each year. He showed maps of employment density to illustrat...
	9. Data Collection and Review  Jason Howard discussed the updated data collection and review schedule.
	10. POPTAC Chair and Vice Chair  Patrick Banger said that his term as POPTAC Chair ends at the end of 2015, and at that time the current Vice Chair will become Chair. He said that applications are being accepted to become the next Vice Chair, for a te...
	11. Regional Updates  There were no regional updates.
	12. Next Meeting of MAG POPTAC

	ATT One - Item 4 - Draft July 1 2015 Municipality Population and Housing Unit Update
	county level
	detailed
	general for rc

	ATT Two - Item 5 - Draft Population and Employment Projections
	DRAFT Population and Employment Projections
	Pop and Emp methodology - SW edits
	Draft Population Projections Control Totals for Maricopa and Pinal Counties


	ATT Three - Item 9 - MAG TIMELINE ACTIVITY 2015
	Task Deadline

	Pop and Emp methodology - final.pdf
	Draft Population Projections Control Totals for Maricopa and Pinal Counties

	ATT Two - Item 5 - Draft Population and Employment Projections.pdf
	DRAFT Population and Employment Projections
	Pop and Emp methodology - SW edits
	Draft Population Projections Control Totals for Maricopa and Pinal Counties

	Pop and Emp methodology - final.pdf
	Draft Population Projections Control Totals for Maricopa and Pinal Counties


	2015-11-10 POPTAC Agenda.pdf
	TENTATIVE AGENDA MAG Population Technical Advisory Committee




